XUAN MINH HYDRO POWER SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 01/2025/NQ/XM-DHDCD Thanh Hoa, March 28, 2025

RESOLUTION

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF XUAN MINH
HYDRO POWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Base!

- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 ;

- Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2013;

- Charter of organization and operation of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company;

- Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan-Minh Hydropower Joint Stock
Company on March 28, 2025,

RESOLUTION

Article 1: Approving Report No. 01/2025/BC-HDQT dated February 25, 2025 of the Board of Directors
on the activities of the Company's Board of Directors in 2024 , term 2020-2025 and Tasks and work plan
in 2025 , term 2025-2030.

Article 2: Approval of Report No. 02/2025/BC-HDQT dated February 25, 2024 of the Board of Directors
on the 2024 buslness and production results and the 2025 plan .

Article 3: Approval of Report No. 01/2025/BC-BKS dated February 26, 2025 of the Company's Board of
Supervisors on the results of operations in 2024 and the direction and tasks of operations in 2025,

Article 4: Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and Submission No, 01/2025/TT-BKS dated
February 25, 2025 of the Board of Supervisors on the proposal to authorize the selection of an
Independent auditing company to audit the 2025 financial statements .

Article 5: Approval of Report No. 01/2025/TT-HDQT dated February 25, 2025 of the Board of Directors
on the plan for distributing after-tax profits in 2024 and expected in 2025 .

Article 6: Approval of Submission No. 02/2025/TT-HDQT dated February 25, 2025 of the Board of
Directors on the proposed remuneration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors In 2025,

Article 7: Approval of Submission No. 03/2025/TT-HD QT dated February 25, 2025 of the Board of
Directors on the personnel plan for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030
term, ‘

7.1 The results of the election of members of the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term are as
follows:

Mr. Pham Van Minh

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong

Mrs, Phung Thi Thu Huyen

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy




7.2 The results of the election of members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term are as
follows:

Mrs. Nguyen Minh Hieu

Mrs. Nguyen Thuan Huyen

Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh

Article 8: Implementation provisions

- The Resolution was approved in full by the Company's 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on March 28, 2025 at the meeting with 100% of the votes in favor and took effect from the date of
signing.:

- The General Meeting of Shareholders assigns the Board of Directors, the Board of General Directors,
and the Board of Supervisors of the Company to organize and implement the above contents in
accordance with the Company's Charter and current legal regulations.
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XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 01/BB/XM-BHDCD

Thanh Hoa, March 28, 2025

REPORT

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER

Business name
Address

Certificate of Business
Registration
Meeting time

Meeting location:

Conference program
and content:

Chairman of the
conference
Secretary of the
congress:

Number of delegates
attending:

JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company.
2nd floor - Management building of hydroelectric projects in Trung Chinh
village, Thuong Xuan town, Thuong Xuan district, Thanh Hoa province.

No. 2802200078 Date of issue: October 3, 2014

Starts at 09:30 on 28/03/2025
Ends at 11:30 a.m. on March 28, 2025

Management building of hydropower projects in Trung Chinh village,
Thuong Xuan town , Thuong Xuan district , Thanh Hoa province.

According to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders program
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company
Ms. Dinh Thuy Lam; Mr, Le Cong Luan

06 shareholders and authorized representatives attended the meeting,
representing 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 71.74% of the total
voting shares of all shareholders with voting rights.

CONGRESS PROCESS (In chronological order)

I. CONGRESS OPENING PROCEDURES

- The organizing committee proceeds to register delegates to attend the congress.

- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong - On behalf of the Organizing Committee declared the opening of the

congress.

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong - Representative of the Delegate Qualification Examination Committee
reported on the examination of the validity of the Congress.

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong - Representative of the Organizing Committee introduced delegates
attending the Congress, nominated members of the Congress Presidium and the Congress
unanimously approved, including:

1, Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors
2. Mr. Pham Van Minh - Member of the Board of Directors

3. Mr. Pham Quang Minh - General Director

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong - Representative of the Organizing Committee, nominated members of
the Congress Secretariat and the Congress unanimously approved, including:

1, Ms. DInh Thuy Lam - Head of the Secretariat
2. Mr. Le Cong Luan - Member

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong - Representative of the Organizing Committee, nominated members of
the Congress's Ballot Counting Committee and the Congress unanimously approved, including:




II.

II1.

1. Ms. Lai Thi Thuy
2. Mr. Nguyen Hung Cuong - Member
3. Mr. Hoang Trung Hieu - Member

The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the meeting agenda and Working Regulations of the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

- Head of the Election and Vote Counting Committes

At the end of the conference opening procedure, the General Meeting of Shareholders began the
Ci:mgress' program according to the Program and Content approved by the Congress and attached to
this Minutes.

PRESENTATIONS AT THE CONFERENCE

Mr. Pham Quang Minh - General Director of the Company presented the report on the results of
production and business in 2024 and the production and business plan in 2025.

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the Board of Directors'
performance report in 2024, term 2020-2025 and tasks and work plan in 2025, term 2025-2030.

Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh - Member of the Company's Supervisory Board, presented: Report of the
Supervisory Board on the Company's operations in 2024; Audited summary financial statements of
the Company for 2024; Proposal to approve the selection of an independent auditing company to
audit the Company's 2025 financial statements.-

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented: The Board of Directors’
proposal on the distribution of after-tax profits for the fiscal year 2024; The Board of Directors'

proposal on the remuneration payment plan for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

of the Company in 2025.

DISMISSAL AND ELECTION OF ADDITIONAL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE TERM 2020-2025

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh presented to the Congress: The report on the approval of the report on the
personnel plan for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors of the Company for the 2025-
2030 term and the congress unanimously approved by raising voting cards.

Legal shareholders of YCP Construction and Energy Joint Stock Company (representing 7,650,000

shares, accounting for 51% of charter capital) introduced candidates for the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board and the meeting unanimously approved by raising voting cards as follows:

Nominate members of the Board of

Nominate Board members

Supervisors

Mr. Pham Van Minh

Mrs. Nguyen Minh Hieu

Mr. Trinh Naguyen Khanh

Mrs. Nguyen Thuan Huyen

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong

| Mrs. Phung Thi Thu Huyen

Legal shareholders of Steel and Industrial Materials Joint Stock Company (representing 2,590,000
shares, accounting for 17% of charter capital) introduced candidates for the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board and the meeting unanimously approved by raising voting cards as follows:

Nominate members of the Board of
Nominate Board members Supervisors

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh

1V,

Ms. Lal Thi Thuy - Head of the Election and Vote Counting Committee presented to the Congress the
regulations for the election of members of the Board of Directors for the 2025-2030 term and the
Congress unanimously approved by raising voting cards.

DISCUSS

Shareholders discussed and shared opinions on improving power generation efficiency and

management at the Company. The Board of Directors would like to accept shareholders ' opinions and
commit to make further efforts to achieve better results than the set plan .

V.

VOTING ON CONTENTS FOR CONGRESS OPINIONS




1.

4.

Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh - Chairman of the Board of Directors asked for the Congress's opinion on
voting on the contents submitted to the Congress for approval.

Ms. Lal Thi Thuy - Head of the vote counting committee presided over the voting on the contents
asking for the Congress's opinions.

The Congress voted to approve the contents presented at the Congress as above.

The Congress took a break and the Counting Committee received the ballot boxes to count the
votes. .

After performing the task of counting votes, the Counting Committee announced the voting results
for each content as follows:

+ The total number of votes issued at the time of voting was 06 votes corresponding to
10,761,114 voting rights.

+ Total number of votes collected at the time of voting: 06 votes corresponding to 10,761,114
voting rights.

+ The total number of valid votes Is 06 votes corresponding to 10,761,114 shares, accounting for
100% of the total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

+ The total number of invalid votes is 0 votes, corresponding to 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

Content 1: Approval of Report No. 01/2025/BC-HPQT dated February 25, 2025 of the
Board of Directors on the activities of the Company's Board of Directors in 2024, term
2020-2025 and Tasks and work plan in 2025 , term 2025-2030

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting,

The total number of shares voting against is O shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares particlpating in voting at the Meeting.

Content 2: Approval of Report No. 02/2025/BC-HPQT dated February 25, 2024 of the
Board of Directors on the 2024 business results and 2025 plan

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

The total number of shares voting against is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion is O shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares attending the vote at the Meeting.

Content 3: Approval of Report No. 01/2025/BC-BKS dated February 26, 2025 of the
Company's Board of Supervisors on the results of operations in 2024 and directions and
tasks for operations in 2025,

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

The total number of shares voting against is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion Is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares attending the vote at the Meeting.

Content 4: Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and Submission No.
01/2025/TT-BKS dated February 25, 2025 of the Board of Supervisors on the

authorization to select an independent auditing company to audit the 2025 financial
statements .
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6.

75

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

The total number of shares voting against is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares attending the vote at the Meeting.

Content 5: Approval of Report No. 01/2025/TT-HPQT dated February 25, 2025 of the
Board of Directors on the plan to distribute after-tax profits in 2024 and expected in
2025

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the

total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

The total number of shares voting against is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares attending the vote at the Meeting,

Content 6: Approval of Submission No. 02/2025/TT-HDQT dated February 25, 2025 of
the Board of Directors on the proposed remuneration of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2025

The total number of shares voting in favor was 10,761,114 shares, accounting for 100% of the
total number of shares participating in voting at the Meeting.

The total number of shares voting against is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of

shares participating in the vote at the Meeting.

The total number of shares with no opinion is 0 shares, accounting for 0% of the total number of
shares attending the vote at the Meeting.

Content 7: Approval of Submission No. 03/2025/TT-HPQT dated February 25, 2025 of
the Board of Directors on the personnel plan for the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term

The results of the election of members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for the
2020-2025 term are as follows:

Content Number of voting rights | Proportion Resuit
Nominate members of BOD
Mr. Pham Van Minh 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Mr. Trinh Nguyenh Khanh 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
| Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Mrs. Phung Thi Thu Huyen 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Nominate members of BOS
Mrs. Nguyen Minh Hieu 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Mrs. Nguyen Thuan Huyen 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected
Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh 10,761,114 shares 100% Elected

CONGRESS CLOSING PROCEDURES

Ms. Dinh Thuy Lam - Head of the Secretariat read the Minutes of the Congress for approval by the
Congress.

Ms. Dinh Thuy Lam - Head of the Secretariat read the Congress Resolution for approval by the
Congress.

The Congress unanimously approved the full text of the Congress Resolution and the Congress
Minutes right at the Congress with 100% approval.




Chairman Trinh Nguyen Khanh declared the congress closed.

Report on verification of shareholder qualifications to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;
Minutes of voting at the 2025 General Meeting of Shareholders;

Minutes of vote counting for election of members of BOD and BOS for term 2025-2030.

SECRETARY OF THE CONGRESS CHAIRMAN OF THE CONGRESS
-1%&7-1@0@}\\

/

S ———
Dinh Thuy Lam Trinh Nguyen Khanh




XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province
http./ thuydienxuanminh. vcpholdings.com.vn

No: 01/2025/BC-HPQT Hanoi, February 25, 2025

REPORT

On the activities of the Company's Board of Directors in 2024, term 2020-2025 and work
plans in 2025, term 2025-2030

To: Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

The Board of Directors of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company (BOD) respectfully reports to
the General Meeting of Shareholders on the Board of Directors' performance in 2024, term 2020-2025 and
work plans in 2025, term 2025-2030 as follows:

I. GENERAL INTRODUCTION

1. Term: 2020-2025

2. Number of Board members: 05 members

3. Board of Directors structure:
1 | Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh Ghalpman ofithe April 20, 2021

Board

2 | Mr. Pham Van Minh Board Member April 20, 2021
3 | Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong Board Member March 26, 2024
4 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy Board Member
5 | Mrs. Phung Thi Thu Huyen Board Member 05/25/2023

{ 6 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Ha Ninh Board Member April 20, 2021 05/25/2023

II. PERFORMANCE RESULTS DURING THE TERM
1. Key policies on governance and strategic direction

“Efficient power generation operation”: In January 2023, the “Efficient power generation
operation process” was issued - This is a product that inherits the power generation process applied
before 2022, adjusted and improved from the results of successful testing of the new operation plan.

The process plays an important role in unifying the principles and order of operating the machine
during peak hours and other hours for all shifts.




vc p XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
; Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province

http:/ thuydienxuanminh. vepholdings.com.vi

Consumption rate 2020-2024 Daily electricity generation record (
(m3/kWh) KWh)
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= \\ater consumption rate = Power generation date

Water consumption rate in 2023 and 2024 The daily electricity generation record was set on
is the best since the power plant started October 11, 2024, reaching 364,326 kWh,
generating electricity, down 1.81m3/1kWh surpassing the records of August 31, 2021 (325,433
compared to the average of 2019-2021. kWh) and October 14, 2022 (362,121 kWh).

“Application of technology in operations” : T1/2024 officially applied HNT flow control
program : A technological solution with the goal of optimizing the operation plan and inter-reservoir
system by simulation method.

“Improving corporate governance model according to international standards” : In
August 2022, apply ISO standard operations at the factory ; In 2021, initially manage according
to the BSC balanced scorecard model , By 2024, BSC indicators will be officially used as
performance monitoring and evaluation indicators; June 2023 - System management through SAP
- Famous enterprise planning software, chosen by multinational corporations around the world as a
management tool;...
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On August 22, 2022, Xuan Minh Factory Documents, stores setup according to 55
was granted ISO 14001 AND ISO 9001 standards

“Applying advanced management tools”: Maintaining 5S efficiency ; Building improvement
awareness ( kaizen ) at the workplace; Completing 100% of document digitization; Managing and
exploiting data on shared onedrive folders ;...

“Streamlining the apparatus and stabilizing personnel” : Adjusting shifts: 3 shifts of 5 teams,
arranging 01 administrative shift to ensure work efficiency, continuity of reporting and minor repairs.

2




vcp XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuari District, Thanh Hoa Province
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Total number of employees: 24 employees, the ratio of indirect and direct labor is 6-18 respectively,
stable from 2021.

2. Key production and business indicators for the period 2020-2025

Revenue and net profit 2020-2024

80.416
80.000
70.000
60.000
50.000
40.000
30.000
20.000
10.000
= 2021 2022 Variable
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CONG

CO PH/

THOY D

Influenced by the power generation output target, the power generation revenue in the 2020-2024
period will reach its highest in 2022, with a result of VND 80.416 billion, and its lowest in 2023, with UAN MI
a result of VND 65.49 billion. Fluctuations in revenue and costs will cause the profit target to reach its
highest at VND 20.62 billion in 2022 and its lowest at VND 4.93 billion in 2023.

In 2024, total revenue reached 71.86 billion VND, an increase of 6.2 billion (about 9.5%) compared
to the set plan, equivalent to an increase of 9% over the same period in 2023. Profit after tax reached
17.79 billion VND, an increase of 9.82 billion (about 123%) compared to the plan, an increase of
12.86 billion VND (261%) compared to 2023. The specific business results in 2024 are as follows:

Unit 2023 2024 2024 Evaluate
Result Plan Result |
1 k{th 53,763,:7;15 52,014,563 62,266,698 120% 116.%-
II Revenue tr.d 65,821 65,649 71,857 109% 109%
III Expense tr.d 60,058 56,825 53,051 93% 88%
IV Profit beforetax  tr.d 5,763 8,824 18,806 213% 326%
V Profit aftertax tr.d 4,937 7,974 17,799 223% 361%




XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province
hitp./ thuydienxuanminh. vcpholdings.com.vin

3. Dividend target for the period 2020-2025

Dividend payout ratio for the period 2020-2025 is Dividends for the period 2020-
based on the business results and financial situation 2025

of the Company each year.
. . . 12% 10%
Implementation principles: Ensure balance between 9%

shareholders' interests and the Company's need for
major repairs of fixed assets; Approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with
legal regulations. &

Payment method: Cash

Payment schedule: 2020-01/07/2021;  2021- 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
26/10/2022; 2022-02/12/2024; 2023-25/9/2024.
—@—Dividends

4. Risk management

< “Interest rate risk control” : Faced with the pressure to maintain stable operating cash
flow, financial solutions have been actively implemented. These include: Capital mobilization solutions
based on bank interest rates plus margin rates, adjusted quarterly, approved in Resolution No.
05/2022/NQ-HDQT dated November 28, 2022, ensuring attractiveness compared to the current
interest rate level, increasing flexibility when the financial market fluctuates; Successfully negotiating
a reduction in interest rate margins at SHB (margin reduction of 0.5% for all loans), helping the
average interest rate return to 8-8.5%/year in 2024.

< “Controlling equipment operation risks”: The policy of establishing a reserve for major
repairs of fixed assets through the solution of allocating development investment funds from after-tax
profits, approved for the first time at the 2023 Shareholders' Meeting, will ensure continuity of
production operations and stability of production and business costs in each period.

5. Other work

% Selection of auditor: Continue to select the auditor, AASC Auditing Company Limited, to
review the semi-annual financial statements and audit the 2024 financial statements, through Decision
No. 06/2024/QD-HDQT dated June 24, 2024. The financial statements will be submitted to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval at the 2025 annual meeting.

< Profit distribution: Comply with the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders each
year.

< Remuneration of Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors: Comply with the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders each year.

III. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

The Board of Directors' supervision of the Executive Board is carried out through the following
forms: Organizing meetings chaired by the Board of Directors, participating in regular meetings chaired

by the General Director, and reporting by the General Director in writing/email. The supervision shows
that:

- The Executive Board and all employees have made efforts to deploy production and business
activities, effectively manage and operate the project, regularly providing timely and appropriate
suggestions and solutions to advise the Board of Directors to increase revenue and maximize profits
for the Company.

- The Executive Board complies with the provisions of law, the Company's charter and the
Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors. The Executive Board

4




vcp XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
y _ Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province

' hitp:/ thuydienxuanminh. vepholdings.com.vn
provides complete and timely information to the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board, creating

conditions for the Supervisory Board to access and inspect the financial situation and other activities
of the Company;

- The Executive Board maintains a good schedule of regular meetings, regularly exchanges,

evaluates and draws experience to adjust management and production solutions flexibly and
effectively.

IV. TERM ORIENTATION 2025-2030
1. Production and business activities

% Supervise the successful implementation of the 2025 production and business plan according
to the targets approved by the annual General Meeting of Shareholders, expected to:

Unit 2024 2025 +/- Evaluate

I Output kWh 62,266,698 60,178,673 -2,088,025 -3%

II Revenue tr.d 71,857 70,674 -1,183.84 -2%

III  Expense tr.d 53,051 53.325 273

IV Profit before tax tr.d 18,806 17,349 1,457 2
V  Profit after tax tr.d 17,799 16,399 -1,400 -9% |

2. Other key tasks for the 2025-2030 period 4
Direct the implementation of the contents approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders; -~

Closely monitor interest rate fluctuations and their impact on business loans and cash flows. From
there, orientate to find solutions to stabilize finances and effectively manage cash flows to maintain
liquidity and optimize costs;

Strategic orientation for digital transformation and application of technology in operations.

Above is the report of the Board of Directors on the performance of the Board of Directors in 2024,
term 2020-2025 and the tasks and work plan in 2025, term 2025-2030 . The Board of Directors
respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval./.

Ricipiant: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD W
- As per; CHAIRMAN
- Save TCTC.

Trinh Nguyen Khanh







XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Thuong Xuan Town , Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province
https://thuydienxuanminh. vepholdings. com. vin

No : 02/2025/BC-HDQT Hanoi, February 25, 2025
REPORT

On the business results in 2024 and the plan for 2025 of Xuan Minh Hydropower ,JSC

To: Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025

The Board of Directors of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company respectfully reports to
the General Meeting of Shareholders on the production and business results in 2024 and the plan and
tasks for 2025 as follows:

A. PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
I. POWER GENERATION OPERATIONS

The year 2024 started with unfavorable hydrological conditions, putting pressure on maintaining water
supply of 40m3/s downstream in the context of Cua Dat plant stopping at peak hours. However,
flexible operational solutions and efforts to save each water flow, combined with favorable hydrological
conditions in the last 3 months of the year, brought impressive results in power generation operations
in 2024.

& == <
Daily record Water consumption Electricity output Revenue
364.326 kWh rate 45,76 m3/kWh 62.266.698 kWh 71,85 ty dong

«  The new daily electricity generation record was set on October 11, 2024, reaching 364,326 kWh.
This is an important milestone, surpassing previous records on August 31, 2021 (325,433 kwh) and
October 14, 2022 (362,121 kWh); Water consumption rate reached 45.76 m3/kWh, which is an
important indicator showing the efficiency of the machine operation method; Output reached
62,266,698 kWh, revenue reached 71,857,388,103 VND, exceeding the set plan.

II. BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024

2024
Plan _

plipL:} Evaluate
Result

: 4 (5 6
Output 53,763,315 52,014,563‘ 62,266,698
II Revenue tr.d 65,821 65,649 71,857 109% 109%
III  Expense tr.d 60,058 56,825 53,051 93% 88%
1 Production cost tr.d 29,441 30,908 29,687 96% 101%
2 g";’:geme”t costs, g 5,337 5,559 6.003  108%  112%
3 Financial costs tr.d 25,280 20,358 17,361 85% 69%
IV Profit before tax - tr.d 5,763 8,824 18,806  213%  326%
Vv Profit after tax tr.d 4,937 7,974 17s.799 223% 361%
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XUAN MINH HYDROPOWER JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Thuong Xuan Town , Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province
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Output: Reached 62,266,698 kWh , exceeding
20% of the plan (52,014,563 kWh) and increasing
16% compared to 2023 (53,763,315 kWh). Reason:
The hydrological situation was positive in the last 3
months of the year, the water flow to the lake
increased dramatically, helping the power generation
output exceed expectations.

6.209

3.774

Revenue: Reached 71.85 billion VND , exceeding
9.5% of the plan (65.64 billion VND) and increasing
9.2% compared to 2023 (65.82 billion VND). Reason:
Increased power generation output leads to increased
revenue.

Expenses: Incurred 53,051 billion VND , 6.6%
lower than planned (56,825 billion VND) and
decreased 11.7% compared to 2023 (60.05 billion
VND). Of which, production costs decreased 4%

compared to the plan, due to some unrealized ' - ’*f—z'
expenses such as: Building a warehouse. Interest Revenue  Expenses Profit =
expenses decreased significantly (15%) compared to mPlan - Result - Evaluate %%“:
the plan, due to SHB bank loan interest rates THON
decreasing fron? .10.5% to 8.7%, interest ra.tesl for Business result in 2024 YUAD
loans to individuals and other organizations S
decreasing 10% to 9%. XU

Profit after tax: Reached 17.79 billion VND , exceeding 123.2% of the plan (7.97 billion VND) and
increasing 260.1% compared to 2023 (4.94 billion VND). The reason is due to the increase and
decrease of revenue and cost targets.

III. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

Current situation : Xuan Minh factory's machinery
and equipment system has been in operation for over
5 years. The equipment has reached the stage of wear
and tear. The equipment's lifespan is gradually

decreasing. Some models are outdated and it is

difficult to find replacement types. m
Objective : With the goal of ensuring stable operation S RaFitfecelrdl
and prolonging the life of the plant, strengthening _
equipment monitoring is a prerequisite to minimize
unexpected incidents. In addition, it is necessary to 2022 0d

promptly replace equipment that does not meet
technical and labor safety requirements.

2024 (Cummulative) 5.070.781.40

Development Investment Fund
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Results : In 2024, the factory had no subjective incidents; There was no situation of having to stop
the machine waiting for repair; Optimized power generation output of both Xuan Minh and Bai Thuong;
Water consumption rate reached 45.76 m3/kWh. These are important indicators achieved, reflecting
the effectiveness in equipment maintenance and repair. As of 2024, in order to reserve for purchasing
high-value equipment, the development investment fund has accumulated 5.07 billion VND. Details in
the attached MMTB status report.

IV. FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
1. Loans and outstanding loans in 2024

In 2024, positive power generation results have ensured cash flow from production and business and
repayment of principal and interest on long-term loans. Principal repayment during the year reached
VND 22.64 billion. Outstanding loans as of December 31, 2024 were VND 204.72 billion. Of which,
outstanding loans at SHB were VND 164.78 billion.

Iterms Unit 01/01/2024 12/31/2024 Increase/decrease

compared to the beginning
of the year

Short term tr.d 38,233 39,929 1,695

Individual/organization tr.d 38,233 39,929 1,695

Bank tr.d

Long term due tr.d 24,333 24,333 0

Individual/organization tr.d 0 0 0 e

Bank tr.d 24,333 24,333 0 e

Long term tr.d 164,783 140,450 -24.333

Individual/organization tr.d 0 0 0

Bank tr.d 164,783 140,450 w2

Add. T T EE T wa e 37350 1204710 3638 ¢

V. INTERNAL MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Balanced Scorecard-BSC in 2024

Finance - 20/20 points: Achieve production, business targets set for 2024; Ensure operating funds.
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Customer - 19/20 points: Payment progress is met; Water usage benefits are harmonized in the
dry season; Maintenance and repair quality is ensured. However, the criteria for spare materials and
equipment of the right type and technical specifications are difficult because the model is outdated,
only meeting the equivalent criteria and can be replaced.

Internal process - 34/35 points: Effective operation; Kaizen in 2024

Ensuring 100% safety of machinery and equipment;

Ensuring 100% labor safety ; Effective application of  *Improved leaking —pump oil
calculation programs, software to support operational pipeline, ending oil loss in the
decision making (HNT of KIV, seho of weather plus); Speed control sysiem

Effective application of modern management tools such as

55, Kaizen, SAP; Has been gradually applying Al technology to support work.

Human resources - 18/25 points: Achieved 10/15 of the number of operating personnel who can
handle minor repairs, with 6 main work items such as: Lighting system maintenance; Cleaning of
collectors, carbon brushes; Oil filter maintenance; Air conditioner maintenance; Maintenance of pump
No. 1 of H2 group; Filtering the factory oil system. However, in 2024, there has been no training in
minor repairs of new systems. In addition, the frequency of BSC assessment is not regular according
to the target of once a month.

B. OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 2025

The 2025 Plan is based on a careful assessment of market factors, hydrological conditions, and plant
performance. The 2025 Plan focuses on cost control and production optimization, while maintaining
effective internal management operations . As "Control, prevent and minimize risks", Xuan Minh
Hydropower Joint Stock Company sets out the 2025 production and business plan as follows:

I. BUSINESS PRODUCTION PLAN 2025

Unit 2024

E Output kwWh 62,266,698 60,178,673 -2,088,025
II Revenue tr.d 71,857 70,674 -1,183.84 -2%
III  Expense tr.d 53,051 53;825 273 1%
I Production cost tr.d 29,687 31,956 2,269 7%
Management costs, other  tr.d 6.003 4,370 -1,632.81 -37%
3 Financial costs tr.d 17,361 16,999 -363 -2%
IV Profit before tax tr.d 18,806 17,349 -1.457 -8%
V  Profit after tax tr.d 17,799 16,399 -1,400 -9%

Output : 60,178,673 kWh (down 3% compared to actual output in 2024).

Revenue : VND 70.67 billion (down 2% compared to 2024 revenue) due to lower expected power
generation output.
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Cost : 53.32 billion VND (slightly increased compared to 2024). Of which, production costs increased
by 7% compared to 2024, due to the expected expenses in 2025: Building warehouses, maintaining

spillways, reinforcing factory roofs. In addition, maintenance contracts, minor repairs, and line rental
increased by 10%.

Profit after tax: VND 16.39 billion (lower than 2024)

II. CASH FLOW PLAN 2025

No Content ( mﬁ%ﬁ"\fn{:m

1 | Cash and cash equivalents as at 01/01/2025 2,073

2 | Cash flow from power generation 2025 - : 85,296

3 Cash outflow 2025 : 93,093
Maintain production and business 18,093
Pay taxes and fees 17,668
Pay principal + interest on due date 45,332
- Principal + interest SHB 38,060
- Principal + Interest of other individuals/organizations 7,272
Dividend payment 2024 12,000

4 | Surplusin 2025 (4=1+2-3) -5.724
Outstanding loans to other individuals/organizations as of 39929
December 31, 2024 : g

6 Expected outstanding debt to other individuals/organizations as 45,653
of December 31, 2025 (6=5-4) !

With the expectation of electricity generation output reaching 60.19 million kWh, the operating
cash flow in 2025 is expected to be relatively positive to maintain stable production and business.
With the plan to pay dividends in 2024 at a rate of 8%, after completing the obligation to pay taxes
and fees (17.67 billion), the obligation to pay periodic principal and interest (45.33 billion), the
expected additional personal loan source in the year is about 5.7 billion. Thus, the outstanding debt
level at December 31, 2025 of other personal and organizational loans (in addition to long-term loans
at SHB) is expected to be about 45.6 billion.

III. INTERNAL OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT PLAN 2025

12% N
£ HuMAN Vi
* RESOURCES

45% §
PROCESS
Balanced Scorecard-BSC in 2025

20%
CUSTOMER

23%
FINANCE

FINANCE-23%:
« Achieve the set production and business targets for 2025
« Minimize the difference between accounting costs and tax costs
« Financial cost control: Average loan interest rate <=10%
.+ No shortage of funds: Maintain personal and other organization loan limit <=35 billion;
Maintain development investment fund allocation >=10% of net profit
5
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+ Reduce material and fuel loss : Keep the oil loss level of the speed control and lubrication
system <=10% of the volume used.

CUSTOMER-20%:
+ EVN: Payment progress <=15 days from the date of submitting documents
+ Al: No generator shutdown required
+ Chu River: Retaining water during peak hours but still ensuring fresh water supply
+ Dat Gate: Optimizing peak output in Xuan Minh and Bai Thuong.
«  ME: Quality of repair and replacement equipment.
+ Other: Do not miss the deadline for submitting 50 periodic reporting items.

PROCESS-45%:

« Efficient operation: Peak hour power generation capacity/Design capacity >=14MW/15MW;
Water consumption/kWh <=48m3/kWh

+ Machinery and equipment safety: Survey and in-depth assessment of equipment using
specialized machinery; Proactively propose maintenance requirements to ME; Reserve and
replace equipment at risk of causing incidents.

+ Labor environment safety: Reinforce some unsafe locations: Spillway top; Roof; Build
warehouse to store materials.

+ Operational safety: Shift organization: No cases of improper use of labor protection, workiry
alone, neglecting the shift, sleeping at night leading to incidents; Workplace organization: N
cases of violations of internal rules, procedures, standards, and electrical safety. E ;

HUMAN RESOURCES-12%: 3
+ Personnel: Self-repair of minor subsystems: Fire water pump; Leakage pump; Drainage pum"p;"'
Anti-flood pump; High - low pressure compressed air.
+ Internal training: PM-MM-FI inter-system on SAP and 01 backup shift leader.

Above are the contents of the production results in 2024 and the expected production and business
plan in 2025 of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company. The Board of Directors of the Company
respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders for direction on implementation.

Best regards!

Recipient : ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ‘h/
s per: ___CHAIRMAN
s . 55022000
Save TCKH s N
fos/ CONG TY\ ;

/
1

Trmh Nguyen Khanh
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No: /2025/BC-BKS Hanoi, February 26, 2025

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

XUAN MINH HYDROELECTRIC JOINT STOCK COMPANY
EAEF KK

To: General Meeting of Shareholders

Base:

- The functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors are stipulated in the Charter of organization and
operation of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company").

- The 2024 financial statements have been audited by AASC Auditing Company Limited.

- Results of inspection and supervision activities of the Company's Board of Supervisors in 2024

The Company's Board of Supervisors for the 2020 - 2025 term consists of 03 members:

- Ms. Dinh Thi Hanh - Head of Board
- Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh - Member
- Mr. Nguyen Ho Ngoc - Member

The Board of Supervisors of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company reports to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on the results of operations in 2024 and the direction and tasks of operations in
2025, specifically as follows:

A. ACTIVITIES AND TEST RESULTS IN 2024

I. Activities of the Board of Supervisors

1. Proposing to select an independent auditor for the Board of Directors to appoint an auditor under the
authorization of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

2. The Board of Supervisors focuses on inspecting and supervising the Company's production, business and
investment activities. Plan and develop quarterly work programs, identify key content for each investment or
operation activity to develop appropriate control content.

3. Fully participated in quarterly and annual meetings of the Company's Board of Directors and provided
comments and opinions on issues that need attention in the Company's production, business and investment
activities.

4. Check and review the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors to implement the Resolution of
the 2024 Shareholders' Meeting, evaluate the achieved and unachieved targets, and analyze specific causes.
5. Regularly inspect and evaluate the management and operation of the performance of production and
business tasks of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in accordance with the Resolution
issued by the Board of Directors and the Company's Charter.

6. Review the company's internal regulations and rules, make recommendations for amendments and
supplements to suit the company's actual situation and legal regulations.

7. The Company's Board of Supervisors has inspected the Company's accounting books; debt management
and solvency; asset management, revenue and expenses to analyze factors affecting business and investment
results, thereby promptly proposing recommendations to the Company.

8. The Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Auditing Company for the first 6 months of the year
and audited for 2024, with comments to ensure that the reports are prepared according to standards and
honestly reflect the Company's financial situation .

9. The Board of Supervisors participates in providing opinions and contributions to the management of the
Company's production and business activities.




10. Some cther activities as assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders

The members of the Board of Supervisors have made efforts to promote their professional capacity and
experience in supervising financial activities, supervising the management and operation of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management to complete the tasks assigned by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, fully perform their functions and tasks according to the Company's Charter, contributing with
the Board of Directors and the executive apparatus to well implement the targets and tasks approved by the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

I1. Performance test results

1. Overview
Stable and flexible staff, operating personnel capable of handling even minor repairs.

2. Evaluation of the Board of Directors’ performance

In 2024 , the Board of Directors of the Company held meetings and issued Resolutions in accordance with the
correct procedures, in accordance with the functions, duties and powers of the Board of Directors as prescribed
in the Company's Charter of Organization and Operation with the following main contents:

- Successfully organized the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

- Select AASC Auditing Company Limited to audit in 2024 under the authorization of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

- Approve other activities to serve production and business activities, timely investment work, and
implement in accordance with the Company's Charter and legal regulations.

3. Evaluation of the Board of Directors' performance

The Board of Directors has actively implemented the assigned tasks stated in the Resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Resolution of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company
has organized the implementation of the production and business plan exceeding the set plan as follows (Data
is taken from the audited financial statements of 2024):

i = e 1022023 0004 o

. STT | Target Unit | Heealt - P s Eyalute -
1) (2) (3) 4 (5) (7)=(6/5)% | (8)=(6/9)%
I Output kKWh 53,763,315 | 52,014,563 | 62,266,698 120% 116%
II Revenue tr.d 65,821 65,649 71,857 109% 109%
I11 Expense tr.d 60,058 56,825 53,051 93% 88%
1 Production cost tr.d 29,441 30,908 29,687 96% 101%
o | Management tr.d 5,337 5,559 6.003 108% 112%

costs, other

3 Financial costs tr.d 25,280 20,358 17,361 85% 69%
v Profit before tax tr.d 5,763 8,824 18,806 213% 326%
\'J Profit after tax tr.d 4,937 7,974 17,799 223% 361%

Total revenue and other income reached 71.8 billion VND, an increase of 6.2 billion VND (equivalent to
9%) compared to the plan at the beginning of the year. The reason was due to favorable hydrological
conditions in the last months of the year leading to high electricity generation output.

Total cost: 53 billion VND, down 3.7 billion (equivalent to 3%) compared to the plan at the beginning of the
year, affected by the increase and decrease of cost indicators. Specifically:

- Production costs decreased by 1.2 billion (equivalent to 4%) compared to the plan at the beginning of the
year, due to unrealized costs such as warehouse construction costs.




- Financial expenses decreased by 3.9 billion (equivalent to 15%) compared to the plan at the beginning of
the year due to the decrease in loan interest rates, specifically bank interest rates decreased from 10.5% to
8.7%, and personal loan interest rates decreased from 10% to 9%.

The Company’s financial situation is assessed through the following basic indicators:

Target Unit 2023 | 2024 +/- %
Current assets Billion 12,960 11,927 -1.033 -7.97%
Long-term assets Billion 391,258 372,166 -19,092 -4.88%
Total assets Billion 404,219 384,093 -20.126 -4.98%
Short-term debt Billion 67,291 70,772 3,481 5.17%
Long-term debt Billion 164,783 140,450 -24.333 -14.77%
Total liabilities Billion 232,074 211,222 -23,334 -10.05%
Equity capital Billion 150,000 150,000 0 0.00%
Undistributed profit Billion 18,437 22,870 4,433 24.04%
Total equity Billion 168,437 172,870 -29 0.00%

Total asééts decreased by 20 billion, equivalent to 4.9%, of which the reason was the decrease in long-
term assets of 19 billion. The proportion of long-term asset decrease was mainly due to the decrease in

fixed asset value due to depreciation of fixed

assets.

Total liabilities decreased sharply by 23.3 billion, equivalent to 10% compared to the beginning of the year,
in which the reason for the decrease was the reduction of long-term debt because the Company paid part of

the principal of the long-term loan to Saigon - Hanoi Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

‘ Target ~ Unit - 2023 2024
Financial balance sﬁeet
Current Assets/Current Liabilities time 0.19 0.17
Capital structure indicators
Liabilities/Total Assets time 0.57 0.55
Liabilities/Equity time 1.38 1.22
Performance indicators
Profit after tax/Total assets % 1.22 4.6
Profit after tax/Equity % 2.93 10.3

A current ratio of 0.17 indicates that the entity may have difficulty paying its short-term debts.

s ~ Target SUnit s 2,023 2024
Pre-tax Accounting Profit Billion 5,763 18,806
Interest expense Billion 25,280 17,361
Interest paid Billion (24,130) (15,505)
Net cash flow from operating activities Billion 24,511 40,100
Net cash flow from investing activities Billion (35) 48
Proceeds from borrowing Billion 37,465 6,949
Loan principal repayment Billion (59,729) (31,495)
Dividends, profits paid to owners Billion 732 15,901
Net cash flow from financing activities Billion (22,997) (40,447)
Net cash flow during the year Billion 1,479 (297)




Net cash flow from operating activities was 40.1 billion, compared to 2023, cash flow from operating activities
increased by 63%; net cash from financial activities was 40.4 billion, of which 15.9 billion was paid for
dividends and 31.4 billion was paid for principal. Cash flow during the year was mainly paid for principal and
dividends.

4. Audit results of financial statements in 2024

The 2024 financial statements audited by AASC Auditing Company Limited have honestly and reasonably
reflected the financial situation, business performance and cash flow of the Company, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of
financial statements. The Board of Supervisors agrees with the figures presented in the 2024 financial
statements submitted by the Board of Directors to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

5. Evaluate the coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors,
and the Board of Management

The Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors and the Board of Management of the Company have maintained
a close cooperative relationship based on the principle of serving the interests of the Company and shareholders
and complying with the provisions of law, the Company's Charter and internal regulations. In 2024, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Management and managers in the Company's functional departments have created
favorable conditions in terms of facilities as well as provided full information and documents necessary for
the inspection and supervision work of the Board of Supervisors. The company has carried out information
disclosure in accordance with regulations.

II1. Conclusion and Recommendations

1. Conclude

In 2024, with the efforts of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management, the company's production
and business results exceeded the set plan. The Board of Supervisors highly appreciated the efforts of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management in organizing and implementing business and investment
activities as well as promptly responding to market fluctuations and natural conditions.

2. Recommendations

- The Board of Directors and the Executive Board continue to closely monitor the hydrological situation and
implement a reasonable and flexible power generation operation plan to achieve the set goals.

- Implement solutions to optimize costs such as interest costs and management costs.

- Build a suitable cash flow plan to ensure financial stability.

- Strengthen equipment monitoring, prepare sources for purchasing spare equipment to ensure continuous
and stable operation of machinery, minimizing incidents.

- In 2024, the Company has transactions with related parties according to Decree No. 132/2020/ND-CP of
the Government: Regulations on tax management for enterprises with related party transactions such as VCP,
Nam La Hydropower, Bai Thuong Hydropower... The Supervisory Board warns and recommends the Board of
Directors to control interest expenses when calculating corporate income tax in the period and reports related
to the obligation to declare related party transactions. Monitor in detail the non-deductible interest expenses
as a basis for recording in the following years as prescribed (within 05 years).

B. WORK PLAN 2025

I. General Mission

- The Board of Supervisors performs its duties on behalf of shareholders to control all business,
management and operation activities of the Company.

- In 2025, the Board of Supervisors will maintain periodic control work accordlng to the company's charter
and operating regulations, taking prevention as the main goal, ensuring that the Company's operations always
comply with the provisions of the law and the Enterprise Law, contributing to the unit's increasingly growing
and achieving high production and business efficiency, ensuring the interests of shareholders and the rights
of employees.

II. Specific tasks in 2025




- Specifically and reasonably assign work to members of the Board of Supervisors, responsible for
controlling the Company's management, operation, investment and production and business activities.
- Monitor the implementation of the Company's charter. Control the implementation of internal regulations,
Resolutions, Decisions of the Board of Directors, and the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Check and supervise the implementation of the 2025 production and business plan approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Review guarterly financial statements.

- Ensure that representatives of the Board of Supervisors fully attend meetings of the Board of Directors
to grasp the Company's governance and business operations, and at the same time provide timely warnings
to ensure shareholders' interests.

- Supervise the implementation of the contents of the Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Analyze and evaluate the financial situation, management situation, capital use, operational efficiency
and debt payment ability of the Company, thereby promptly making recommendations and warnings to
support the management activities of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.

Above is the Report on the operation situation of the Board of Supervisors of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint
Stock Company in 2024; the operation direction of the Board of Supervisors in 2025.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Thank you very much!

Recipient: ON BEHALF OF THE BOS
- Asabove, HEAD OF BOARD
- Board of Directors,

—  Save Company Office + Board of Directors

Dinh Thi Hanh
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No: 01/2025/TT-BKS Hanoi, February 25, 2025

SUBMISSION

Re: Proposal to approve the authorization to select an independent auditing company to audit the 2025
financial statements of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

To:_General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Base:
- Current Enterprise Law;

- The Charter of organization and operation of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company has been
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Results of the audit of the Company's 2024 financial statements.

In order to serve the inspection and control of the Company's financial situation in 2025, ensure
compliance with current regulations and standards of the State, and at the same time ensure the rights
and interests of shareholders, the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Company hire a qualified
and reputable auditing unit to perform the 2025 Financial Report.

The Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval
the authorization for the Board of Directors to select and appoint an auditing company with sufficient
reputation, capacity, conditions and suitable price to meet the requirements of performing the audit of
the 2025 financial statements for Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Supervisors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval.
Thanks a lot!

Reciuient : ON BEHALF OF THE BOS
Recipient: HEAD OF BOARD

- As per your request;

- Board of Directors;

- Save.

Dinh Thi Hanh
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0 .: 02/2025/TT-HDQT Hanoi, February 25, 2025

SUBMISSION

Re: Proposal for remuneration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2025

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Base:

- The Charter of organization and operation of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company has
been approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders;

- The Company's 2025 fiscal year business production plan.

The Board of Directors of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company proposes the following
plan to pay remuneration to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2025:

e Bil el | person/month ,

1 | Board of Directors 5 252,000,000
Chairman of the Board 1 5,000,000 12 60,000,000
Board Member 4 4,000,000 12 192,000,000

2 | Board of Control 3 84,000,000
Head of Supervisory Board 1 3,000,000 12 36,000,000
Board Member 2 2,000,000 12 48,000,000
Total 336,000,000

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock
Company for approval.

Best regards!

Recipient : ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ‘\N/

- Asper;
- Save TCTC.

Tﬁnh”NQuyen Khanh
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No: 03/2025/TT-HBQT Hanoi, February 25, 2025

SUBMISSION

Regarding the personnel plan for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board of Xuan Minh Hydropower
Joint Stock Company for the 2025-2030 term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Base:

- Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 of the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam and implementing documents;

- Charter of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company.

In compliance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and the Company's Charter, the Board
of Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2020-2025 term have ended. The Board of Directors of
Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval of the personnel plan for the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
for the 2025-2030 term as follows:

1. Number of members of the Board of Directors: 05 members , in accordance with the
provisions of Clause 1, Article 26, Company Charter issued on April 20, 2021.

2. Number of members of the Board of Supervisors: 03 members , in accordance with
the provisions of Clause 1, Article 37, Company Charter issued on April 20, 2021.

Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders of Xuan Minh Hydropower Joint
Stock Company for approval.

Best regards!

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD W/

Recipient:

- Asper;
- Save TCTC.
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“Trinh Nguyen Khanh
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company (the “Company”) presents
its report and the Company’s Financial statements for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024.

THE COMPANY
The Company was established under the Business Registration Certificate of a Joint Stock Company

No. 2802200078 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Thanh Hoa City for the first
time on 03 October 2024, registered for the second amendment on 20 March 2020.

The Company's head office is located at 2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa
Province, Vietnam.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The members of the Board of Directors during the fiscal year and to the reporting date are:

Mr.  Trinh Nguyen Khanh Chairman

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy Member

Mr.  Pham Van Minh Member

Ms. Phung Thi Thu Huyen Member

Mr.  Nguyen Thanh Phuong Member (Appointed on 26 March 2024)
Mr. LeVan Thuy Member (Resigned on 26 March 2024)

The members of the Board of Management during the fiscal year and to the reporting date are:

Mr. Pham Quang Minh General Director
Mr. Pham Tien Luat Deputy General Director

The members of the Board of Supervision are:

Ms. Dinh Thi Hanh Head
Mr. Nguyen Ho Ngoc Member
Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh Member

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and up to the date of this Financial Statement
is Mr. Pham Quang Minh - General Director.

AUDITORS
The auditors of the AASC Limited have taken the audit of Financial statements for the Company.

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management is responsible for the Financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Company, its operating results and its cash flows for the year. In preparing
those Financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:



Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam

- Establish and maintain an internal control system which is determined necessary by the Board of
Management and Board of Directors to ensure the preparation and presentation of Financial
Statements do not contain any material misstatement caused by errors or frauds;

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Financial statements;

- Prepare and present the Financial statements on the basis of compliance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory
requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of Financial statements;

- Prepare the Financial statements on going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept to reflect the
financial position of the Company, with reasonable accuracy at any time and to ensure that the
Financial Statements comply with the current State’s regulations. It is responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Board of Management confirms that the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position at 31 December 2024, its operation results and cash flows in the year 2024 of the
Company in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements.

Other commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Company complies with Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP
dated 31 December 2020 on detailing and guiding the implementation of a number of articles of the
Law on Securities and the Company-does not violate the obligations of information disclosure in

ham Quang Minh
General Director
Thanh Hoa, 24 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Management
Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying Financial statements of Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock
Company prepared on 24 February 2025, as set out on pages 5 to 29 including: Statement of
Financial positionas at 31 December 2024, Statement of Income, Statement of Cash flows and
Notes to the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024.

Board of Management's Responsibility

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of Financial statements and for such internal control as the Board of
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of Financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with standards, ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and presentation of Financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board of Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the

financial position of Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and of

its operating results and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese

Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requirements
/,rgleyﬁrbt;tg‘\ttle preparation and presentation of the Financial statements.
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“Do/Manti Ctiong Hoang Duc Anh
Deputy General Director Auditor
Registered Auditor No.; 0744-2023-002-1 Registered Auditor No.: 4876-2024-002-1
Hanoi, 24 February 2025
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh
Hoa Province, Vietnam

Financial statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024

Code ASSETS Note 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
100 A. CURRENT ASSETS 11,927,286,540 12,960,630,658

110 I Cash and cash equivalents 1,774,919,107 2,072,886,096
111 1. Cash 3 1,774,919,107 2,072,886,096
130 Il. Short-term receivable 8,061,825,567 8,087,608,449
131 1. Short-term trade receivables 4 7,680,599,967 7,728,608,449
132 2. Short-term prepayments to suppliers 54,000,000 -
136 3. Other short-term receivables 5 327,225,600 359,000,000
140 Il Inventories 2,090,541,866 1,924,136,113
141 1. Inventories 6 2,090,541,866 1,924,136,113
150 IV. Other short-term assets - 876,000,000
151 1. Short-term prepaid expenses 9 - 876,000,000
200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 372,165,780,033 391,258,779,351
220 I. Fixed assets 365,898,351,508 385,213,644,672
221 1. Tangible fixed assets 7 346,724,237,935 365,574,704,103
222 - Historical costs 463,972,820,519 463,972,820,519
223 - Accumulated depreciation (117,248,582,584) (98,398,116,416)
227 2. Intangible fixed assets 8 19,174,113,573 19,638,940,569
228 - Historical costs 21,818,442,843 21,818,442 843
229 - Accumulated amortization (2,644,329,270) (2,179,502,274)
260 |II. Other long-term assets 6,267,428,525 6,045,134,679
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 9 6,267,428,525 6,045,134,679
270 TOTAL ASSETS 384,093,066,573 404,219,410,009
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company

2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of

Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,

Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh

Hoa Province, Vietnam

Financial statements

for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

(Continued)
Code CAPITAL Note
300 C.LIABILITIES
310 I. Current liabilities
311 1. Short-term trade payables 11
313 2. Taxes and other payables to State budget 12
314 3. Payables to employees
315 4. Short-term accrued expenses 13
319 5. Other short-term payables 14
320 6. Short-term borrowings and finance lease 10
liabilities
322 7. Bonus and welfare fund
330 Il. Non-current liabilities
338 1. Long-term borrowings and finance lease 10
liabilities
400 D. OWNER'S EQUITY
410 l. Owner’s equity 15
411 1. Contributed capital

411a
418
421

421a

421b

440

Nyt

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024

Ordinary shares with voting rights
2. Development and investment funds
3. Retained earnings

Retained eamnings accumulated toof the previous year

Retained earnings of the current year

TOTAL CAPITAL

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
211,222,314,391 232,074,628,609
70,771,932,008 67,291,263,434
188,343,810 357,750,000
2,844,727,796 2,299,378,622
681,676,030 -

1,625,334,045
1,169,130,800
64,261,494, 527

1,225,000

140,450,382,383
140,450,382,383

172,870,752,182

172,870,752,182
150,000,000,000
150,000,000,000
5,070,781,400
17,799,970,782

1,495,705,509
572,052,400
62,566,377,003

164,783,365,175
164,783,365,175

172,144,781,400

172,144,781,400
150,000,000,000
150,000,000,000
3,707,230,266
18,437,6561,134

- 13,500:000,000
17,799,970,782 937,551,134

384,093,066,5729 404,219,410,009

Do Thi Hong Ngat
Preparer

Dinh Thuy Lam
Chief Accountant

/

Pham Quang Minh
General Director
Thanh Hoa, 24 February 2025
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company

2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of

Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,

Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh

Financial statements

Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024
STATEMENT OF INCOME
Year 2024
Code ITEMS Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and 17 71,497,768,393 65,320,188,125

02 2.

10 3

11 4.

20 5.

21 6.
22 7.

rendering of services

Revenue deductions

. Net revenues from sale of goods and

rendering of services
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit from sales of goods and
rendering services

Financial income
Financial expense

23 - In which: Interest expense
25 8. Selling expense
26 9. General and administrative expenses

30 10.

31 11

32 12

40 13.

50 14,

51 15,
52 16.

60 17.

Net profits from operating activities

. Other income
Other expenses

Other profit
Total net profit before tax

Current corporate income tax expense
Deferred corporate income tax expense

Profit after corporate income tax

18

19
20

21

22

71,497,768,393

29,686,956,170

41,810,812,223

48,990,435
17,361,261,264
17,361,261,264

5,466,624,772
19,031,916,622

310,629,275
536,485,514

(225,856,239)
18,806,060,383

1,006,089,601

65,320,188,125

29,441,347,194

35,878,840,931

3,871,304
25,280,064,535
25,280,064,535

5,006,148,893
5,596,498,807

497,273,154
330,461,911

166,811,243
5,763,310,050

825,758,916

17,799,970,782

4,937 551,134

70 18. Basic earnings per share 1,165 308
/ CONG TY
cO PHAN
N MC THOY,BTY
Do Thi Hong Ngat Dinh Thuy Lam
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director
Thanh Hoa, 24 February 2025
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,

Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Financial statements

Hoa Province, Viethnam

for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year 2024
(Indirect method)
Code ITEMS Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 1. Profits before tax 18,806,060,383 5,763,310,050
2. Adjustments for:
02 - Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 19,315,293,164 19,378,107,416
05 - Gains/losses from investment activities (48,990,435) (3,871,304)
06 - Interest expense 17,361,261,264 25,280,064,535
08 3. Operating profit before changes in 55,433,624,376 50,417,610,697
working capital
09 - Increase/Decrease in receivables 25,782,882 2,285,783,583
10 - Increase/Decrease in inventories (166,405,753) (454,495,828)
11 - Increase/Decrease in payables (excluding 1,058,010,189 (917,242,860)
interest payable/corporate income tax payable)
12 - Increase/Decrease in prepaid expenses 653,706,154 (48,132,950)
14 - Interest paid (15,505,773,571) (24,130,297,968)
156 - Corporate income tax paid (825,758,916) (1,349,179,398)
17 - Other payments on operating activities (572,775,000) (1,292,465,499)
20 Net cash flows from operating activities 40,100,410,361 24,511,579,777
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 1. Purchase or construction of fixed assets and - (39,843,636)
other long-term assets
27 2. Interest and dividend received 48,990,435 3,871,304
30 Net cash flows from investing activities 48,990,435 (35,972,332)
lll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
33 1. Proceeds from borrowings 6,949,889,157 37,465,133,981
34 2. Repayment of principal (31,495,319,542) (59,729,949,457)
36 3. Dividends or profits paid to owners (15,901,937,400) (732,375,000)
40 Net cash flow from financing activities (40,447,367,785) (22,997,190,476)
50 Net cash flows in the year (297,966,989) ;478,416,969
60 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 2,072,886,096 594,469,127
of the year e
70 Cash and cash equivalents at the end @"’/‘if~ﬁ‘3{@ﬁ@9w1 07 2,072,886,096

of the year

g

>/ CONG TY NX,
[ cOPHAN
THUY BHEN

ha;ﬁ Quang Minh
General Director
Thanh Hoa, 24 February 2025

Do Thi Hong Ngat
Preparer

Dinh Thuy Lam
Chief Accountant



Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year 2024

,GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Forms of Ownership

The Company was established under the Business Registration Certificate of a Joint Stock Company
No. 2802200078 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Thanh Hoa City for the first
time on 03 October 2024, registered for the second amendment on 20 March 2020.

The Company's head office is located at 2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of Hydropower
Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province,
Vietnam.

The Company's charter capital is VND 150,000,000,000 equivalent to 15,000,000 shares, with the par
value of VND 10,000 per share.

The number of employees of the Company as at 31 December 2024 are: 23 people (as at 01 January
2024: 23 people).

Business field

Main business activities of the Company include investment in the construction of hydropower projects;
generation, transmission, and distribution of electricity, etc.

Business activities

Main business activities of the Company are:
- Investment in construction of hydropower projects;
- Generation, transmission and distribution of electricity.

The Company’s operation in the year that affects the Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's current assets were lower than its current liabilities by VND
58,844,645,468, including VND 27,832,982,792 in the current portion of long-term debt. (As at 1 January
2024, the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by VND 54,330,632,776, with VND
61,002,208,730 in the current portion of long-term debt). This indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The
Company's liquidity over the next 12 months will depend on its business performance and its ability to
secure funding from credit institutions.

However, based on the assessment of actual business performance and the analysis of the Company's
future operating cash flows, specifically the plan to extend personal loans, the Board of General
Directors believes that the Company will generate profits from its electricity trading business, ensuring its
ability to meet the aforementioned debt obligations when due and continue normal business operations.
Therefore, this Financial Statement is prepared on the basis of the going concern assumption.

In 2024, due to favorable hydrological conditions, the water flow into the hydropower reservoir increased,
leading to a slight increase in electricity sales revenue compared to 2023. In addition, the cost of
electricity sales in 2024 remained relatively stable compared to 2023, as it primarily consists of fixed
costs. At the same time, interest expenses in 2024 decreased sharply compared to 2023 due to a
reduction in loan principal and interest rates, resulting in a sharp increase in the Company's net profit
before tax for 2024.

.ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND ACCOUNTING POLICY

.Accounting period and accounting currency

Annual accounting period commences from 1 January and ends as at 31 December.
The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.




Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam  for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.2

2.3

24

25

.Standards and Applicable Accounting Policies

Applicable Accounting Policies

The Company applies Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, the Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March
2016 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles of the Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC.

Declaration of compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting System

The Company applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and supplementary documents issued by the
State. Financial Statements are prepared and presented in accordance with regulations of each
standard and supplementary document as well as with current Accounting Standards and Accounting
System.

.Accounting estimates

The preparation of Separate Financial Statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires
the Board of Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent liabilities and assets at the date of the Separate Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the fiscal year.

The estimates and assumptions that have a material impact in the Separate Financial Statements
include:

- Provision for bad debts;

- Provision for devaluation of inventory;

- Estimated useful life of fixed assets;

- Estimated corporate income tax.

Such estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Separate
Financial Statements of the Company and that are assessed by the Board of Management to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

. Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Company include cash, trade receivables, other receivables. At initial recognition,
financial assets are identified by purchasing price/issuing cost plus other expenses directly related to the
purchase and issuance of those assets.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company include borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accrued
expenses. At initial recognition, financial liabilities are determined by issuing price plus other expenses
directly related to the issuance of those liabilities.

Subsequent measurement after initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are not revalued according to fair value at the end of the year
because the Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC and prevailing statutory regulations require to present
Financial statements and Notes fo financial instruments but not provide any relevant instruction for
assessment and recognition of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities.

.Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits.

10

=~
’ IAV, &

ey o i e B s



Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.6 .Receivables

2.7

2.8

The receivables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, entities receivable, types of currency
and other factors according to requirements for management of the Company. The receivables shall be
classified into short-term receivables or long-term receivables in the Separate Financial Statements
based on their remaining terms at the reporting date.

The provision for doubtful debts is made for receivables that are overdue under an economic contract, a
loan agreement, a contractual commitment or a promissory note and for receivables that are not due but
difficult to be recovered. Accordingly, the provisions for overdue debts shall be based on the due date
stipulated in the initial sale contract, exclusive of the debt rescheduling between contracting parties and
the case where the debts are not due but the debtor is in bankruptcy, in dissolution or missing and
making fleeing or estimating the possible losses.

.Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at original cost including purchase price, processing cost and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their location and condition at the time of initial recognition.
After initial recognition, at the reporting date, inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Net realizable value is estimated based on the selling price of the inventory minus the estimated costs
for completing the products and the estimated costs needed for their consumption.

The cost of inventory is calculated using weighted average method.
Inventory is recorded by perpetual method.

Provision for devaluation of inventories made at the end of the year is based on the excess of original
cost of inventory over their net realizable value.

.Fixed assets

Fixed assets (tangible and intangible) are initially stated at the historical cost. During the using time, fixed
assets (tangible and intangible) are recorded at cost, accumulated depreciation and carrying amount.

Subsequent measurement after initial recognition

If these costs aument future economic benefits obtained from the use of tangible fixed assets are
extended to their initial standards conditions, these costs are capitalized as an incremental in their
historical cost.

Other costs incurred after tangible fixed assets have been put into operation such as repair,
maintenance and overhaul costs are recognized in the Statement of Income in the year in which the
costs are incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings, structures 20-40 years
- Machinery, equipment 06 -20 years
- Vehicles, transportation equipment 08 vyears
- Office equipment and furniture 03 vyears
- Land use rights 47 years

1
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.9

210

2.1

212

213.

.Operating lease

Operating leases is fixed asset leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are charged to income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

. Prepaid expenses

The expenses incurred but related to operating results of several fiscal years are recorded as prepaid
expenses and are allocated to the operating results in the following fiscal years.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses to operating expenses in each fiscal year
should be based on the nature of those expenses to select a reasonable allocation method and criteria.

Prepaid expenses of Company include:

- Software implementation service costs are recorded at their historical costs and allocated using the
straight-line method over a 12-month period. ,

- Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including those related to leased land for which the
Company has received certificate of land use right but not eligible for recording as intangible fixed
asset in accordance with the Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 issued by the Ministry
of Finance guiding regulation on management, use and depreciation of fixed assets and other
expenses related to ensure for the use of leased land. These expenses are recognized in the
statement of income on a straight-line basis according to the lease term of the contract.

- Upstream reinforcement and auxiliary dam loading costs are recorded at their historical costs and
allocated using the straight-line method over 60 months.

- Other prepaid expenses are recorded at their historical costs and allocated on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives of 36 months.

. Payables

The payables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, entities payable, types of currency and
other factors according to the requirements for management of the Company. Account payables are
classified as short-term and long-term in the Financial Statements based on the remaining maturities of
the payables at the reporting date.

. Borrowings

Borrowings shall be recorded in details in terms of lending entities, loan agreement and payable term of
borrowings.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as operating expenses in the year, in which it is incurred excepting
those which are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized
as part of the cost of that asset in accordance with VAS No. 16 “Borrowing costs”. Besides, regarding
borrowings serving the construction of fixed assets and investment properties, the interests shall be
capitalized even when the construction duration is under 12 months.

12



Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.14 . Accrued expenses

215

2.16

217 .

2.18

Accrued expenses include payables to goods or services received from the suppliers or provided for the
customers during the reporting year, but the payments for such goods or services have not been made
and other payables such as interest expenses, 110kV line rental expenses which are recorded as
operating expenses of the reporting year.

The recording of accrued expenses as operating expenses during the year shall be carried out under the
matching principle between revenues and expenses during the year. Accrued expenses are settled with
actual expenses incurred. The difference between accrued and actual expenses is reverted.

.Owner’s equity

Owner’s equity is stated at actually contributed capital of owners.

Retained earnings are used to present the Company’s operating results (profit, loss) after corporate
income tax and profit appropriation or loss handling of the Company.

Dividends to be paid to shareholders are recognised as a payable in Statement of Financial position after
the announcement of dividend payment from the Board of Management and announcement of cut-off
date for dividend payment of Vietnam Securities Depository Center.

.Revenue

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company which
can be reliably measured. Revenue is determined at the fair value of the amounts received or to be
received after deducting trade discounts, sales discounts, sales returns. The following specific
recognition conditions must also be met when recognizing revenue:

Revenue from rendering of services
- The percentage of completion of the transaction at the Balance sheet date can be measured reliably.

Financial income

Financial incomes include income from assets yielding interest shall be recognised when the two
conditions are satisfied:

- Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold and services rendered are cost of finished goods, merchandises, materials sold or
services rendered during the year, and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue and on a
prudence basis. Cases of loss of materials and goods exceeded the norm, abnormal expenses and
losses of inventories after deducting the responsibility of collective and individuals concerned, etc. is
recognized fully and promptly into cost of goods sold in the year.

.Financial expenses

The expense recorded in the Company's financial expenses is interest expense.

The above items are recorded by the total amount arising in the year without offsetting against financial
income.

13




Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Financial statements

2.19 . Corporate income tax

2.20 .

2.21

a. Current corporate income tax expenses
Current corperate income tax expenses are determined based on taxable income during the year and
current corporate income tax rate.

b. Tax Incentive Policies

The Company is enjoying the following tax incentives policies:

Document

Summary of tax incentives

Validity period

Circular No. 96/2015/TT-
BTC dated 22 June 2015
provides guidance on the
implementation of certain
provisions of the Corporate
Income Tax Law No.
14/2008/QH12 and the
implementation of Decree
No. 218/2013/ND-CP dated
26 December 2013 of the
Government.

The Company is subject to a corporate
income tax (CIT) rate of 10% for 15
years from the commencement of
project operations (from 2018 to 2032)
for income derived from the
implementation of a new investment
project. The Company is exempt from
CIT for 4 years (from 2019 to 2022)
from the time it generates taxable
income from hydropower operations
and is entitled to a 50% reduction in

c. Current corporate income tax rate
For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024, the Company applies the corparate income tax rate:
- Tax rate of 10% for operating activities receiving incentives for investment locations;

- Tax rate of 20% for remaining activities.

Earnings per share

The vyear 2024 is the
Company's sixth financial year
since taxable income has
been arisen. Therefore, the
Company is currently enjoying
a 50% reduction in corporate
income fax and applying the
preferential tax rate of 10%.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the bonus and welfare fund and allowance for
Board of Directors) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

.Related Parties

The parties are regarded as related parties if that party has the ability to control or significantly influence
the other party in making decisions about the financial policies and activities. The Company's related

parties include:

- Companies, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, having control over the Company
or being under the control of the Company, or being under common control with the Company,
including the Company's parent, subsidiaries and associates;

- Individuals, directly or indirectly, holding voting power of the Company that have a significant influence
on the Company, key management personnel including directors and employees of the Company, the
close family members of these individuals;

- Enterprises that the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an important part of the
voting power or have significant influence on these enterprises.

In considering the relationship of related parties to serve for the preparation and presentation of
Financial statements, the Company should consider the nature of the relationship rather than the legal

form of the relationship.
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan

Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.22 . Segment information

Due to the Company only operates in the field of electricity production in Vietnam, the Company does not
prepare segment reports by business segment and geographical segment.

3 .CASH

Cash on hand
Demand deposits

4 . SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Related parties
- Bai Thuong Hydropower Joint Stock Company
- Nam La Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Others
- Northern Power Corporation
- Thanh Hoa Power Company - Thuong Xuan Power

5 .OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

- Advances
- Remuneration for Board of Directors, Board of Supervision
Related parties
+ Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh
+ Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy
+ Ms. Phung Thi Thu Huyen
+ Mr. Pham Van Minh
+ Mr. Le Van Thuy
+ Ms. Nguyen Thi Ha Ninh
+ Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong
+ Ms. Dinh Thi Hanh
+ Mr. Nguyen Ho Ngoc
+ Mr. Tran Xuan Ninh
- Payment on behalf of social insurance

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
340,349,628 133,425,893

1,434,569,479

1,939,460,203

1,774,919,107 2,072,886,096
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
22,680,000 55,080,000

- 9,720,000

22,680,000 45,360,000
7,657,919,967 7,673,528,449
7,638,085,969 7,649,348,348
19,833,998 24,180,101

7,680,599,967

7,728,608,449

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
= 35,000,000
324,000,000 324,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
48,000,000 48,000,000
48,000,000 28,000,000
48,000,000 48,000,000
s 36,000,000
. 20,000,000
36,000,000 2
36,000,000 36,000,000
24,000,000 24,000,000
24,000,000 24,000,000
3,225,600 =
327,225,600 359,000,000
15
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

6 .INVENTORIES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

- Raw materials 2,042 409,265 1,881,203,113
- Tools, supplies 48,132,601 42,933,000
2,090,541,866 1,924,136,113

7 .TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
See details in Annex 01.
8 .INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the intangible fixed assets were the land use rights with an historical cost of
VND 21,818,442,843. The carrying amount and accumulated depreciation were VND 19,174,113,5673
and VND 2,644,329,270 respectively, with depreciation for 2024 amounting to VND 464,826,996.

Land use rights include:

- The historical cost of VND 20,102,996,170 represents the remaining site clearance compensation
expenses in Xuan Cam and Xuan Cao Communes, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, after
offsetting against land rental fees (Note 9), in accordance with Decree No. 46/2014/ND-CP dated 15

- The historical cost of VND 1,715,446,673 represents the site clearance compensation expenses for
the resettlement project of households affected by landslides in Vung Lau, Tien Son 1 Hamlet, Thuong
Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, as approved under Decision No. 3293/QD-
UBND dated 31 December 2019, issued by the People's Committee of Thuong Xuan District.

The carrying amount of intangible fixed assets pledged as collaterals for borrowings at the end of the

year: VND 19,174,113 573, '."_‘f/
9 .PREPAID EXPENSES <\
31/12/2024 01/01/2024 &
VND VND
Short-term
- SAP S/4HANA software implementation service cost - 876,000,000
- 876,000,000
Long-term
- Land rental cost (*) 4,502,534,326 4613,252,384
- Upstream reinforcement and auxiliary dam loading costs 727,364,267 1,240,797 867
- Reservoir operation program 253,333,333 -
- Major repair expenses 284,610,833 -
- Other long-term prepaid expenses that need to be allocated 499,585,766 191,084,428
6,267,428,525 6,045,134,679

(*) The land leased by the Company in Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province is used for the Xuan
Minh Hydropower Project, with a lease term until August 2065. The area of the leased land is 179,296.3
m?. The balance at the end of the year represents the land clearance cost accepted by the tax authority
to offset the annual land rent according to Official Dispatch No. 2825/CT-TTHT dated 21 June 2019 of
the Thanh Hoa District Tax department. These costs have been allocated over 101 months, with a total
allocation period of 589 months, leaving a remaining allocation period of 488 months.
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan

Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

10 .BORROWINGS

See details in Annex 02.

11 .SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Related parties 148,837,500 141,750,000

- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock Company 148,837,500 141,750,000

Others , 39,506,310 216,000,000

- FPT Information System — FPT IS - 216,000,000

- Toan Thang Construction Trading Company Limited 39,506,310 -

188,343,810 357,750,000

12 .TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

01/01/2024 During the year 31/12/2024

Tax payable Tax payable Tax paid Tax payable

VND VND VND VND

- Value-added tax 550,523,904 5,976,490,493 5,963,460,033 563,554,364

- Corporate income 825,758,916 1,006,089,601 825,758,916 1,006,089,601
tax

- Personal income 6,317,021 590,762,305 403,127,700 193,951,626
tax

- Natural Resource 392,045,993 6,324,226,413 6,323,408,253 392,864,153

Consumption Tax
- Other taxes - 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
- Fees, charges and 524,732,688 3,037,749,128 2,874,213,764 688,268,052

other payables

2,299,378,522

16,938,317,940 16,392,968,666

2,844,727.796

The Company's tax settlements are subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the
application of tax laws and regulations on many types of transactions is susceptible to varying
interpretations, amounts reported in the Financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final

determination by the tax authorities.

13 . SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

- Interest expense
- 110kV line rental cost

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
860,591,765 912,669,189
764,742,280 583,036,320

1,625,334,045

1,495,705,509
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of

Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam

Financial statements
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.SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

Beginning balance

of previous year
Profit for previous

year

Profit distribution - 3,707,230,266 (4,966,063,601) (1,258,833,335) -
Ending balance 150,000,000,000 3,707,230,266 18,437,551,134 172,144,781,400
of previous year

Profit for this year - - 17,799,970,782 17,799,970,782
Profit distribution (i) - 1,363,5651,134 (18,437,551,134) (17,074,000,000)
Ending balance 150,000,000,000 5,070,781,400 17,799,970,782 172,870,752,182

of this year

150,000,000,000

18,466,063,601

4,937,551,134

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
In which: Related parties

- VCP Power & Construction Joint Stock Company 764,742,280 583,036,320
- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Jeint Stock Company 21,213,699 105,580,821
- Mr. Pham Tien Luat 14,065,086 15,451,513
- Mr. Nguyen Viet Hoang - 8,284,932
- Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh 3,832,470 4,139,998
- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong 48,523,288 -
852,376,823 716,493,584

.SHORT-TERM OTHER PAYABLES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
- Trade union fee 92,198,200 93,182,400
- Dividends or profits payables 1,076,932,600 478,870,000
1,169,130,800 572,052,400

.OWNER’S EQUITY
a. Changes in owner’s equity
Contributed Investment and Retained

capital development fund earnings Total
VND VND VND VND

168,466,063,601

4937,551,134

(i) According to the Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ/XM-DHDCD dated 26 March 2024 issued by General
Meeting of shareholders and Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 04/2024/NQ-HDQT dated 31
October 2024, the Company announced its profit distribution for 2022 and 2023 as follows:

Rate Amount
VND VND
Investment and development fund 7.40% 1,363,551,134
Bonus and welfare fund 1.36% 250,000,000
Remuneration payment for Board of Directors, Board of 1.76% 324,000,000
Supervision in 2023
Cash dividend payment 89.49% 16,500,000,000

(In 2022, each share will receive 900 VND
In 2023, each share will receive 200 VND)

18,437,551,134

18
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of
Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Financial statements
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.OWNER’S EQUITY (continued)

b. Details of Contributed capital

31/12/2024 Rate 01/01/2024 Rate
VND % VND %
- VCP Power & Construction Joint Stock 76,500,000,000 51.00 76,500,000,000 51.00
Company
- Steel Industry Material Joint Stock 25,900,000,000 17.27 7,500,000,000 5.00
Company
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy - - 18,400,000,000 12.27
- Others 47,600,000,000 31.73 47,600,000,000 31.73
150,000,000,000 100.00 150,000,000,000 100.00
c. Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Owner's contributed capital
- At the beginning of the year 150,000,000,000 150,000,000,000
- At the end of the year 150,000,000,000 150,000,000,000
Distributed dividends and profit
- Distributed dividends payable at the beginning of the year 478,870,000 1,211,245,000

- Distributed dividends payable in the year
+ Dividend payment from last year's profit
- Distributed dividends paid by cash
+ Dividend payment from last year’s profit
- Distributed dividends payable at the end of the year

d. Share

Quantity of Authorized issuing shares
Quantity of issued shares

- Common shares

Quantity of outstanding shares in circulation
- Common shares

Par value per share (VND)

.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

a. Operating asset for leasing

16,500,000,000
16,500,000,000

(15,901,937,400) (732,375,000)
(15,901,937,400) (732,375,000)

1,076,932,600 478,870,000

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
15,000,000 15,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000
10,000 10,000

The company entered into two car lease contracts with a total quarterly income of VND 30,000,000.

b. Operating leased assets

The Company leases 179,296.3 m? of land until 04 August 2065 under Contract No. 234/HDTD dated 17
August 2016 with Thanh Hoa Provincial People's Committee for the construction of the main and

auxiliary works of Xuan Minh Hydropower. Specially:

- 124,042.2 m? of land in Xuan Cam commune, Thuong Xuan district, at a rental rate of 418

VND/m?/year;

- 55,254.1 m” of land in Xuan Cao commune, Thuong Xuan district, at a rental rate of 512 VND/mzlyear.

The entire annual land rent is offset against site clearance costs according to Official Dispatch No.
2825/CT-TTHT dated 21 June 2019 of Thanh Hoa District Tax department (Note 9).
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Revenue from hydropower
Revenue from rooftop solar

.COST OF GOODS soLD

Cost of hydropower
Cost of rooftop solar

In which: Purchase from related parties
(As detailed in Note 29)

.FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income

. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expenses

In which: Financial expenses purchased from related
parties
(As detailed in Note 29)

. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Raw materials

Labour expenses

Tools, supplies

Depreciation expenses

Tax, charge, fee

Expenses of outsourcing services
Other expenses in cash

In which: Expenses purchased from related parties
(As detailed in Note 29)

. TOTAL REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
71,374,242 187 65,191,742,739
123,526,206 128,445 386
71,497,768,393 65,320,188,125
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

29,604,751,170
182,205,000

29,259,142,194
182,205,000

29,686,956,170

29,441,347,194

3,507,556,196 3,073,283,340
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
48,990,435 3,871,304
48,990,435 3,871,304
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

17,361,261,264

25,280,064,535

17,361,261,264

25,280,064,535

502,025,948 1,250,259,028
Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

- 44,278,133

. 3,291,887,698 3,086,004,312
2,172,727 3,758,500
74,988,691 59,990,953
3,000,000 3,238,000
453,681,421 875,623,109
1,640,894,235 933,255,886

5,466,624,772

5,006,148,893

324,000,000

300,000,000
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.OTHER INCOME

Income from the sale of International Renewable Energy
Certificate (I-RECs)

Income from CDP ProA REDP project management fee
reimbursement

Income from car rental

Others

In which: Other income from related parties
(As detailed in Note 29)

.CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Total profit before tax

Increase

- Ineligible expenses

- Non-deductible interest expense according to Decree No.
132/2020/ND-CP

Taxable income

- Income is entitled to incentives

- Income is not eligible for incentives

Current corporate income tax expense

- Current corporate income tax expense is entitled to
incentives

- Current corporate income tax expense is not eligible for
incentives

Current corporate income tax expense reduced according to
Decree 218/2013/ND-CP

Current corporate income tax expense

Tax payable at the beginning of the year
Tax paid in the year

Corporate income tax payable at the end of the year

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
190,629,275 200,921,207

- 173,795,415

120,000,000 120,000,000

- 2,556,532

310,629,275 497,273,154
120,000,000 120,000,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
18,806,060,383 5,763,310,050
1,310,057,013 10,401,099,474
695,630,369 200,146,079
614,426,644 10,200,953,395

20,116,117,396
20,121,792,033
(5,674,637)
2,012,179,203
2,012,179,203

(1,006,089,602)

16,164,409,524
16,047,486,591
116,922,933
1,628,133,246
1,604,748,659

23,384,587

(802,374,330)

1,006,089,601

825,758,916

825,758,916
(825,758,916)

1,349,179,398
(1,349,179,398)

1,006,089,601

825,758,916
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.BASIC EARNING PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share distributed to common shareholders of the company are calculated as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Net profit after tax 17,799,970,782 4,937,551,134

Adjustments: (324,000,000) (324,000,000)

- Bonus for the Board of Management, Board of Supervision (324,000,000) (324,000,000)

Profits attributable to common stock 17,475,970,782 4,613,5651,134

The average number of outstanding shares in circulation 15,000,000 15,000,000
during the year

Basic earnings per share 1,165 308

The company has not planned to make any distribution to Bonus and welfare fund, bonus for the Board

of Directors from the net profit after tax at the date of preparing Financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company does not have any shares with potential dilution of earnings per

share.

.BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY ITEMS

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Raw materials 239,666,031 230,365,610
Labour expenses 7,507,347,638 7,382,758,599
Depreciation expenses 19,270,299,949 19,378,107,416

6,054,581,674
2,081,685,650

Expenses of outsourcing services
Other expenses in cash

6,377,172,073
1,079,092,389

35,153,580,942

34,447,496,087

.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

The Company's financial risks may include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company has
developed its control system to ensure the reasonable balance between cost of incurred risks and cost
of risk management. The Board of General Directors of the Company is responsible for monitoring the
risk management process to ensure the appropriate balance between risk and risk control.

Market risk
The Company will bear the market risks such as fluctuations in interest rates.

Interest rate risk:

The Company bears the risk of interest rates due to the fluctuation in fair value of future cash flow of a
financial instrument in line with changes in market interest rates if the Company has time or demand
deposits, borrowings and debts subject to floating interest rates. The Company manages interest rate
risk by analyzing the market competition situation to obtain interest beneficial for its operation purpose.

22



Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company
2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of

Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village, Thuong Xuan Financial statements
Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam for the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

26 . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty fails to perform its contractual
obligations. The Company has credit risk from operating activities (mainly to trade receivables) and
financial activities (including deposits, loans and other financial instruments), detailed as follows:

Under 1 year Total
VND VND

As at 31/12/2024
Cash 1,434,569,479 1,434,569,479
8,007,825,567

Trade receivables, other receivables 8,007,825,567

9,442,395,046

9,442,395,046

As at 01/01/2024

Cash 1,939,460,203 1,939,460,203
Trade receivables, other receivables 8,087,608,449 8,087,608,449

10,027,068,652 10,027,068,652
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company has trouble in settlement of its financial obligations due to the
lack of funds. The Company's liquidity risk arises mainly from the fact that its financial assets and

financial liabilities have different maturities.

Due date for payment of financial liabilities based on expected payment under the contracts (based on

cash flow of the original debts) as follows:

From more than

Under 1 year From 1to 5 years 5 years Total
VND VND VND VND
As at 31/12/2024
Borrowings and debts 64,261,494, 527 97,331,931,168 43,118,451,215 204,711,876,910
Trade and other 1,357,474,610 - - 1,357,474 610
payables
Accrued expenses 1,625,334,045 - - 1,625,334,045
67,244,303,182 97,331,931,168 43,118,451,215 207,694,685,565
As at 01/01/2024
Borrowings and debts 62,566,377,003 97,331,931,168 67,451,434,007 227.349,742,178
Trade and other 929,802,400 - - 929,802,400
payables
Accrued expenses 1,495,705,509 - - 1,495,705,509

64,991,884,912  97,331,931,168  67,451,434,007

229,775,250,087

The Company believes that risk level of loan repayment is controllable. The Company has the ability to
pay due debts from cash flows from its operating activities and cash received from mature financial

assets.
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27 .ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE ITEMS OF THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
a. Actual loan amount collected during the year
Proceeds from borrowing under conventional contracts 6,949,889,157 37,465,133,981
b. Actual loan principal amount paid during the year
Repayment of principal loan under conventional contract 31,495,319,542 59,729,949 457

28 .SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events occurring after the reporting period, which would require
adjustments or disclosures to be made in the Financial statements.

29 .TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

List and relation between related parties and the Company detail as follows:

Related parties Relation

VVCP Power & Construction Joint Stock Company Parent company

Steel Industry Material Joint Stock Company Shareholders

VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock Company Subsidiary of the Parent Company

Bai Thuong Hydropower Joint Stock Company Subsidiary of the Parent Company

Nam La Hydropower Joint Stock Company Subsidiary of the Parent Company

Mr. Vu Tuan Cuong Blockholder of Parent company

Mr. Vu Ha Nam General Director of the Subsidiary of the
Parent Company

Deputy General Director of the Subsidiary of
the Parent Company

Mr. Nguyen Viet Hoang

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of
Management, Board of Supervision

In addition to the information with related parties presented in the above notes, the Company has the
transactions during the year and the balance at the beginning and end of the accounting period with
related parties as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Purchase of goods and services 3,507,556,196 3,073,283,340
- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock Company 968,888,276 922,750,740
- VCP Power & Construction Joint Stock Company 2,538,667,920 2,150,532,600
Dividends 10,896,000,000 -
- Steel Industry Material Joint Stock Company 2,481,000,000 -
- VCP Power & Construction Joint Stock Company 8,415,000,000 -
24
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29 .TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Interest expense 502,025,948 1,250,259,028
- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock Company 42,449 315 256,133,944
- Nam La Hydropower Joint Stock Company - 168,483,287
- Mr. Nguyen Viet Hoang 85,446,575 121,486,028
- Mr. Vu Ha Nam - 50,768,913
- Mr. Vu Tuan Cuong - 436,162,467
- Mr. Pham Tien Luat 186,621,899 213,084,391
- Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh 50,373,911 4,139,998
- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong 137,134,248 -
Office rental costs 324,000,000 300,000,000
- VCP Power & Construction Joint Stock Company 324,000,000 300,000,000
Car rental income 120,000,000 120,000,000
- Bai Thuong Hydropower Joint Stock Company 36,000,000 36,000,000
- Nam La Hydropower Joint Stock Company 84,000,000 84,000,000
Transactions with other related parties:
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Key manager's income

1,140,020,000

1,112,055,909

- Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh Chairman of Board of 60,000,000 60,000,000
Directors

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Thuy Member of Board of 48,000,000 48,000,000
Directors

- Mr. Pham Van Minh Member of Board of 48,000,000 48,000,000
Directors

- Ms. Phung Thi Thu Huyen Member of Board of 48,000,000 28,000,000
Directors

- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong Member of Board of 36,000,000 -
Directors

- Mr. Le Van Thuy Member of Board of - 36,000,000
Directors

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Ha Ninh Member of Board of - 20,000,000
Directors

- Mr. Pham Quang Minh General Director 768,020,000 740,055,909

- Mr. Pham Tien Luat Deputy General Director 48,000,000 48,000,000

- Ms. Dinh Thi Hanh Head of Board of 36,000,000 36,000,000
Supervision

- Mr. Nguyen Ho Ngoc Member of Board of 24,000,000 24,000,000
Supervision

- Mr. Trinh Xuan Ninh Member of Board of 24,000,000 24,000,000
Supervision

Apart from the above related party transactions, other related parties did not have any transactions
during the year and had no balance at the end of the fiscal year with the Company.
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30 .COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are figures in the Financial statements for the fiscal year epded as at 31
December 2023, which was audited by AASC Limited.

ol

tnQuar
General Director
Thanh Hoa, 24 February 2025

Do Thi Hong Ngat Dinh Thuy Lam
Preparer Chief Accountant
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Xuan Minh Hydro Power Joint Stock Company

2nd Floor, Management and Operation Building of Hydropower Projects in Trung Chinh Village,
Thuong Xuan Town, Thuong Xuan District, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam

Financial statements
The fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

Annex 01 : TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Vehicles,
Buildings, Machinery, transportation Management
structures equipment equipment equipment Total
VND VND VND VND VND
Historical cost
Beginning balance 250,909,211,464  211,823,946,328 1,199,819,091 39,843,636  463,972,820,519

Ending balance of the year 250,909,211,464  211,823,946,328 1,199,819,091 39,843,636  463,972,820,519

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance

- Depreciation for the year
Ending balance of the year

40,089,453,316
7,654,889,369
47,744,342,685

57,182,725,931
11,107,306,897
68,290,032,828

1,124,830,401 1,106,768 98,398,116,416
74,988,690 13,281,212 18,850,466,168
1,199,819,091 14,387,980  117,248,582,584

Net carrying amount

Beginning balance
Ending balance

210,819,758,148

164,641,220,397

74,988,690

38,736,868

365,574,704,103

203,164,868,779

143,5633,913,500

25,455,656

346,724,237,935

- The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets pledged as collaterals for borrowings at the end of the year: VND 346,471,026,029;
- Cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets but still in use at the end of the year: VND 1,199,819,091.
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Annex 02 : BORROWINGS

a. Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings

- Personal loans

- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock
Company

Current portion of long-term borrowings

- Saigon-Hanoi Commercial Joint Stock
Bank - Thang Long Branch

- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock
Company

- Personal loans

b. Long-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

- Saigon-Hanoi Commercial Joint Stock
Bank - Thang Long Branch

- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock

- Personal loans

Amount due for settlement within 12 months

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
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(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)

(2)

(3)
(4)

01/01/2024 During the year 31/12/2024
Outstanding Amount can be Increase Decrease Outstanding Amount can be
balance paid balance paid
VND VND VND VND VND VND

1,664,168,273
1,664,168,273

61,002,208,730
24,332,982,792

2,000,000,000

34,669,225,938

1,564,168,273
1,664,168,273

61,002,208,730
24,332,982,792

2,000,000,000

34,669,225,938

43,026,680,212
39,026,680,212
4,000,000,000

27,332,982,792
24,332,982,792

3,000,000,000

8,162,336,750
4,162,336,750
4,000,000,000

60,502,208,730
24,332,982,792

2,000,000,000

34,169,225,938

36,428,511,735
36,428,611,735

27,832,982,792
24,332,982,792

3,000,000,000

500,000,000

36,428,511,735
36,428,511,735

27,832,982,792
24,332,982,792

3,000,000,000

500,000,000

62,566,377,003

62,566,377,003

70,359,663,004

68,664,545,480

64,261,494,527

64,261,494,527

225,785,573,905 225,785,573,905 3,000,000,000 60,502,208,730 168,283,365,175 168,283,365,175
189,116,347,967 189,116,347,967 - 24,332,982,792 164,783,365,175 164,783,365,175

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
34,669,225,938  34,669,225938 - 34,169,225938 500,000,000 500,000,000
225,785,573,905  225,785,573,905 3,000,000,000 60,502,208,730 168,283,365,175 168,283,365,175

(61,002,208,730)

(61,002,208,730)

164,783,365,175

164,783,365,175

(27,332,982,792)

(60,502,208,730)

(27,832,982,792)

(27,832,982,792)

140,450,382,383

140,450,382,383
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Annex 02 : BORROWINGS (continued)

c. Detailed information on Short-term borrowings:

No. Lenders Loan term Rate Loan purpose Loan guarantee
Short-term
(1) Personal loan 12 months 8.9%/year Supplementing working capital Unsecured
Long-term
(2) Saigon-Hanoi Commercial Joint Stock  Until 17 January  According to Funding investment costs for All assets of Xuan Minh hydropower
Bank - Thang Long Branch 2032 each debt construction of Xuan Minh project
agreement Hydropower project (excluding
project VAT)
(3) VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint From 03/12/2024  8.9%l/year Supplementing working capital Unsecured
Stock Company to 27/12/2025
(4) Personal loan 12 months + 1 8.9%/year Supplementing working capital Unsecured
day
d. Loans to related parties
Relation 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Principal Interest Principal Interest
VND VND VND VND
Long-term borrowings
- VCP Mechanical & Electrical Joint Stock Company  Subsidiary of the Parent Company 3,000,000,000 21,213,699 2,000,000,000 105,580,821
- Mr. Pham Tien Luat Deputy General Director 2,218,563,691 14,065,086 2,142,782,005 15,451,513
- Mr. Nguyen Viet Hoang Deputy General Director of the - - 1,200,000,000 8,284,932
Subsidiary of the Parent Company
- Mr. Trinh Nguyen Khanh Chairman of Board of Directors 604,516,733 3,832,470 556,369,366 4,139,998
- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phuong Member of Board of Directors 2,000,000,000 48,523,288 - -
(Appointed on 26 March 2024)
7,823,080,424 87,634,543 5,899,151,371 133,457,264
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